1976

# Utah v. William Andrews : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a criminal proceeding brought by the State of Utah against William Andrews, charging him with three counts of criminal homicide, murder in the first degree in violation of Section 76-5-202, Utah Code Annotated (Supp. 1953) and two counts of aggravated robbery in violation of Section 76-6-302, Utah Code Annotated (Supp. 1973).

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

In the District Court of the Second Judicial District in and for Davis County, State of Utah, on November 15, 1974, after a trial by jury, the defendant was found guilty of three counts of first degree murder and two counts of aggravated robbery. On November 20, 1974, after a hearing on the sentence, the jury recommended that the defendant be sentenced to death on all three counts of first degree

murder. On November 24, 1974, Judge John F. Wahlquist sentenced the defendant to death by shooting at 7:47 A.M., January 21, 1975, on all three counts of first degree murder and sentenced the defendant to an indefinite term of not less than five years to life imprisonment in the Utah State Prison.

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks an order of this Court reversing the judgment rendered at the trial and or hearing on sentence of this cause, and a ruling remanding the cause to the trial court for a new trial, or in the alternative, an Order setting aside the sentence of death and remanding the case to the trial court for the imposition of the sentence of life imprisonment.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The appellant, William Andrews, concurs with the statement of the facts on pages 2 to 6 of appellant, Dale S. Pierre's brief on appeal with the following additions. Orrin W. Walker, the states chief witness, and an eye witness to the commission of the crime itself, testified that the defendant, William Andrews, was present and standing at the bottom of the stairs of the HiFi Shop basement when he entered on the night of April 22. He further testified that both defendant Andrews and defendant Pierre had weapons. Subsequent to his intial confrontation with the two defendants, Walker testified that the defendant Pierre's gun discharged, and that defendant Andrews said, "What did you do that for, man?" (Tr. 3174) Mr.

Walker further testified that during the time that the defendant Pierre and Andrews were administering the caustic fluid and prior to the time that defendant Pierre fired the shots, that the two defendants engaged on numerous occasions in conversation and that defendant Andrews appeared to be nervous and upset (Tr. 3176-77). Furthermore, Walker testified that at one point subsequent to the administration of the liquid but prior to the shooting, Andrews said, "I can't do it, I'm scared!" (TR. 3174, 3183). Finally, Walker testified that prior to Pierre committing the rape of Michelle Ansley and before any shots were fired at any of the victims, defendant Andrews went up the back stairs, out the back door, shut the door behind him and never re-entered the HiFi Shop again (Tr. 3187-88).

#### ARGUMENT POINT I

APPELLANT ANDREWS CONCURS WITH AND RE-ARGUES POINTS NUMBERS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, & 8 OF THE BRIEF OF APPELLANT, DALE S. PIERRE.

Defendant-Appellant Pierre's brief has exhaustively and authoritatively presented for this court arguments concerning the unconstitutionality of the death penalty, the denial of a fair trial and violation of due process clause because of prejudicial pre-trial publicity, the abuse of discretion and reversible error created by the court and the courts failure to grant appellants motion for change of venue and for separate trials and for allowing the testimony of Dr. Bryon H. Naisbett to be witnessed by the jury. The attorney for defendant Andrews, on numerous occasions prior to the trial

and during the course of the trial, made appropriate motions concerning the above issues. That at all times said motions were denied. That the cases submitted in the brief of defendant Dale Pierre in support of the issues raised therein gave the court the most concise and conclusive support for Defendant Andrews position. Counsel for defendant, Andrews, has found no other cases than those already before the court which would assist the court in resolving these issues and therefore respectfully urges the court to consider those issues referred above as re-argued and submitted on behalf of Defendant Andrews and rebutted.

#### ARGUEMENT POINT II

THE TRIAL COURTS FAILURE TO GRANT APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR SEQUESTRATION OF THE JURY, BETWEEN THE PERIOD OF NOVEMBER 15, 1974, TO NOVEMBER 20, 1974, WAS AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION AND REVERSIBLE ERROR IN LIGHT OF THE ADVERSE PUBLICITY AND PREJUDICIAL ATMOSPHERE SURROUNDING APPEALLANT'S TRIAL.

Prior to the commencement of the trial on November 15, 1974, defendant's attorney, along with the attorneys for defendant, Pierre, and defendant, Roberts move the trial court that the jury be sequestered for the duration of the trial so that prejudicial pre-trial publicity would be avoided and that a fair trial be given all the defendants. Judge John F. Wahlquist denied the defendant's motion saying that he felt proper decorum could be observed and that every precautions would be taken so that the jury would not be influenced by outside sources. (The court should take



careful note of Page 39 of defendant Pierre's brief on appeal, as evidence that even the best precautions were not sufficient). On November 15, 1974, defendant, Andrews, was found guilty of three counts of first degree murder, and at that time requested that the court grant, pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, 76-3-207 (1) a hearing on whether or not the death sentence or life imprisonment would be imposed and that the decision thereon be made by the jury. Because of the length of the trial, which had already taken four weeks, and the necessity of counsel obtaining additional witnesses for the sentencing hearing the trial judge ordered that the hearing be held on November 20, 1974, five days later. At this time, defendant's counsel renewed a request for sequestration of the jury for this five day period (Tr. 4114) contending that the jury members could be subjected to great pressure over the five day period from outside sources, which pressure could affect the sentence. Again, Judge John F. Wahlquist denied appellant's motion.

It is clear that in light of all of the surrounding circumstances, that the jury should have been sequestered during the five day period between the rendering of the verdict and the sentencing hearing. While it is true that sequestration is discretionary with the judge, and that many factors must be considered, to-wit: expense to the State, time involved, inconvenience to the jury, that these types of considerations must necessarily be viewed in light of the more serious effects that failure to sequester a jury can have in a case of this nature. As has been noted in appellant Dale Pierre's brief and reaffirmed here, not only was this

Digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, BYU  
Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

a trial involving a capitol offense, wherein a potential death sentence was at issue, but was beyond a doubt the most widely publicized homicide case in recent Utah history. The trial judge admitted that the pre-trial publicity was so pervasive that he was certain there was no one who did not have some familiarity with the case. By the time the jury's verdict was entered, four weeks of testimony had transpired, and had been graphically portrayed daily to the public by both written and electronic media. Although the trial judge frequently warned jurors not to expose themselves to media reports, the sheer volume of news coupled with the public reaction could not have been barred from even the most conscientious juror. The obvious remedy for the court to protect both the defendant and the jurors was sequestration. The trial judge; however, chose to ignore the obvious, under the shield of "judicial digression". In the case of *Shepherd vs. Maxwell*, 384 U. S. 363, the United States Supreme Court indicated that where there is a reasonable likelihood of prejudicial news coverage attendant to a trial which will prevent a fair trial, the jury should be sequestered and in fact that the sequestration of the jury was something that should be raised sua sponte by the court. Therefore it is clear that the Supreme Court intended that complete "judicial discretion" in the area of sequestration be tempered by the surrounding circumstances. It is inconceivable that the type of pressure brought about by the publicity of this case could not have effected the jurors during the five day

period between the verdict and the sentencing. Not only were newspapers and electronic media filled with stories about the trial during this period of time, but no doubt jurors were subjected to close scrutiny by friends, neighbors and other acquaintances. While the logistics of sequestering a jury for four to five weeks is something that the court should and apparently did give great weight, sequestration for only a five day period was not a great sacrifice on the part of the state and whatever expense would be incurred was outweighed by the inherently prejudicial effect of non-sequestration at that time. The trial judge should have sequestered the jury to protect its members from the influence of both the constant and pervasive news coverage of the trial and the attitude of the community. This failure to do so was an abuse of his discretion and denied the appellant a fair trial, and further violated his right to due process under the 14th Amendment.

#### CONCLUSION

On the basis of the foregoing points, the Appellant respectfully submits that the judgment rendered at trial be reversed and the case remanded to the trial court for the purpose of a new trial, or that, in the alternative, this Court should Order that the Appellant's sentence of death be set aside, and direct the trial court to impose the sentence of life imprisonment.