1977

Utah v. William Andrews : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

RESPONDENT REARGUES POINTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, AND 12 OF THE STATE'S BRIEF IN RESPONSE TO THE BRIEF OF CO-DEFENDANT DALE PIERRE (UTAH SUPREME COURT NO. 13903), INsofar AS THE SUBSTANCE OF THOSE ARGUMENTS APPLIES TO APPELLANT ANDREWS.

Appellant was charged and convicted of the identical crimes for which defendant Pierre was convicted. The arguments presented by respondent in Points I through VIII, and XII of their brief in State v. Pierre, No. 13903, concerning the constitutionality of the death penalty, the effect of pre-trial publicity, the court's proper denial of appellant's motions for change of venue, continuance, sequestration of the jury, and for separate trials, the admission of Dr. Naisbitt's testimony relating to the medical condition of his son, Cortney, and the propriety of the State's and appellant's burden of proof at the sentence hearing, apply equally to appellant Andrews.

Because of the identical nature of the issues raised and reargued by appellant Andrews (Appellant's Brief, Point I, p.3-4, and the addendum to his brief), respondent respectfully asks this Court to consider the above mentioned issues reargued in behalf of the State as to appellant Andrews with the following additions as to certain points:

A. (POINT 4)

THE SENTENCE OF DEATH IN THIS CASE IS PROPER IN THAT IT IS NOT EXCESSIVE OR DISPROPORTIONATE TO THE OFFENSE, AND THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT TRIAL AND AT THE SENTENCING HEARING SUPPORTS THE SENTENCE.

As is argued in Point I of respondent's brief in State v. Pierre, we maintain that mandatory review of death penalty cases is not constitutionally required under Gregg v. Georgia, 96 S.Ct. 2902 (1976), Proffitt v. Florida, 96 S.Ct. 2902 (1976), and Jurek v. Texas, 96 S.Ct. 2950 (1976).

Mr. Justice Stewart reiterated the primary concerns of Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238 (1972), and Gregg v. Georgia, 96 S.Ct. 2902 (1976), when he wrote:

"As a general proposition these concerns [of Furman] are best met by a system that provides for a bifurcated proceeding at which the sentencing authority is apprised of the information relevant to the imposition of sentence and provided with standards to guide its use of the information.

We do not intend to suggest that only the above-described procedures would be permissible under Furman or that any sentencing system constructed along these general lines would inevitably satisfy the concerns of Furman,⁴⁶ for each distinct system must be examined on an individual basis.

* * *

46 A system could have standards so vague that they would fail adequately to channel the sentencing decision patterns of juries with the result that a pattern of arbitrary and capricious sentencing like that found unconstitutional in Furman could occur." 96 U.S. 2935.

Respondent agrees that the statutory review provisions of Georgia, Florida and Texas were commended in dicta by the United States Supreme Court. The Court did not intimate, however, that such review was the only constitutionally permissible way that jury discretion could be controlled in order to prevent the arbitrary, capricious, wanton and discriminatory imposition of the death penalty. Statutory schemes like Utah's which provide for bifurcated proceedings, require proof of aggravating circumstances, and allow evidence of any mitigating circumstances, also satisfy Furman.

Respondent submits that Utah Code Ann. § 76-3-207(3) (Supp. 1975), and prior Utah Supreme Court decisions (State v. Riley, 41 Utah 2d 225, 126 P.2d 294 (1911), and State v. Stehbach, 78 Utah 350, 2 P.2d 1050 (1931)), coupled with traditional discretionary appeal, allow this Court to comprehensively review the case.

This review contemplates a consideration of alleged errors of law and evidence of discrimination, arbitrariness, and caprice in the sentencing phase.

However, respondent submits that appellant in the present case has failed to meet his burden on appeal in that he has failed to support his allegations with citation from the transcript. Appellant relies by incorporation on the brief of his codefendant Pierre concerning presentation of mitigating factors at the sentencing hearing. Defendant Pierre called two witnesses at the sentencing hearing and their testimony is discussed in Point IV of respondent's State v. Pierre brief. These witnesses were not called by or for appellant and their testimony is not directly applicable to him.

Appellant was the only witness who testified in his behalf at the sentencing hearing. He talked about his personal history and background, including two previous crimes (Tr.4247-4258). Appellant makes no

specific reference in his brief to this testimony nor does he suggest what weight it had or should have.

In the absence of such reference, respondent asserts that the evidence presented at trial and the sentencing hearing support the sentence imposed on appellant. Appellant makes no argument that his penalty is disproportionate and excessive in relation to his crimes. His testimony at the sentencing hearing was self-serving and uncorroborated. The jury in this case was able to observe appellant's demeanor and sincerity when he testified. The Utah death penalty statutes obligate the sentencing authority to weigh aggravating and mitigating circumstances. The jury determined that the death penalty was appropriate in this case and appellant presents no evidence to rebut that determination.

Respondent submits that a comprehensive review of this case is appropriate and necessary. We maintain, however, that it is an impossible and inappropriate burden on this Court to act as appellant's advocate in any review proceeding. Appellant's failure to allege specific error in the sentencing hearing and his failure to support allegations of insufficient evidence with

facts or citation to the transcript does not obligate the Utah Supreme Court to rectify these shortcomings. Appellant's sentence is appropriate and not excessive or disproportionate to his crimes and should be affirmed.

B. (Point 7)

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR SEPARATE TRIAL AND NO PREJUDICE RESULTED THEREFROM.

Respondent incorporates by reference Point VII of its brief in the appeal of Dale Pierre, supplementing it with the following paragraphs herein:

Unlike appellant Pierre, appellant Andrews included an affidavit in support of his motion to sever (T.67,70). However, that affidavit and the oral argument thereon (T. of Var. Pro. 23-31) presented no facts that indicated that the defendants' defenses would be antagonistic. The substance of the affidavit was that appellant "strongly believed" that his defense strategy would differ from Pierre's because appellant would rely on a defense of withdrawal, while Pierre would try to discredit the

eyewitness testimony of Orren Walker and such discrediting would be adverse to appellant.

The incorporated Point VII of respondent's brief in the Pierre appeal clearly refutes the implication of antagonistic defenses. Defenses may be different, even inconsistent, without being antagonistic. Appellant's affidavit fails to get beyond the stage of "belief," supposition and innuendo into the factual realm; therefore, the holding of State v. Rivenburgh, 11 Utah 2d 95, 355 P.2d 689 (1960), that a self-serving affidavit, without more, does not require the granting of a motion to sever, is applicable.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION
BY DENYING APPELLANT'S MOTION TO SEQUESTER THE JURY
AFTER TRIAL BUT PRIOR TO THE SENTENCING HEARING.

Following appellant's conviction of three counts
of first degree murder on Friday, November 15, 1974, he
requested a sentencing hearing before the jury to deter-
mine penalty pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 76-3-207(1)
(Supp. 1973). The trial court suggested that the
sentencing hearing be held the following Tuesday,
November 19, 1974, but the defense attorneys requested
more time to obtain additional witnesses for the hearing
(T. 4110). The state objected to any continuance beyond
the following Tuesday (T. 4110, 4112). At this point the
judge asked the defense attorneys if they were willing
to waive sequestering the jury (presumably if the court
granted their request for additional time) (T. 4110).
Appellant's attorneys and Mr. Pierre's attorney then
explicitly said they waived sequestration:

"THE COURT: Now if you expect any
type of sequester I require that you
go ahead. Are you willing to wave
[sic] that at this point?

MR. ATHAY: We are willing to
wave [sic] it.

MR. CAINE: We also wave [sic] it."
(T. 4110).

The judge then suggested convening the sentencing hearing the following Wednesday, November 20, 1974, rather than Tuesday. The defense attorneys, apparently having thought they would receive more time than only one additional day began to have second thoughts about waiving sequestration:

"MR. ATHAY: If it please the court, if all we are looking at is next Wednesday, I submit that one day is not going to make any difference, and we just as well proceed Tuesday with the sequester. If we are not going to sequester, we would ask for a week. If we are only going to go to Wednesday, we would move and request for sequestration." (Emphasis added.) (T.4111).

Mr. Athay and Mr. Caine then withdrew their prior waiver's of sequestration (T.4111). The court set the sentencing hearing for 9:00 a.m. Wednesday, November 20, 1974, and denied appellant's request to sequester the jury (T. 4114-4115).

Prior to dismissing the jury the court repeatedly admonished them as follows:

". . . it is extremely important there be no misconduct of jurors or anything of this sort, otherwise it will put a hardship on these people that is tremendous. You understand this? Everyone involved.

So everyone would have to obey the rule very carefully to go ahead and if anyone tries to speak to you about the case just resist their efforts.

If anybody wants to compliment you or criticize you for your verdict or anything of this nature, tell them the proceedings are not over and to resist their efforts and of course take nothing serious that you would hear in such a way, you certainly know more about the case than anyone who would ever speak to you about it." (T.4112).

The judge then ordered those who work at Hill Air Force Base and at least four other jurors not to go to work (T.4113). Just prior to excusing the jury the court again reiterated its cautionary instructions:

"You recognize the importance of still staying aloof of all of this? . . . I suggest that you get clear from this building right now. Do not let anybody talk to you in any way. All the admonitions and cautions that I have given you before please abide by them." (T.4114).

Appellant admits in his brief that the trial court had discretion over the issue of jury sequestration,¹ but alleges that the trial judge abused his discretion in denying appellant's motion to sequester. In support of this contention, appellant alleges that the environment in the community was "inherently prejudicial" (citing

¹See Utah Code Ann. § 77-31-27 (1953), as amended).

Sheppard v. Maxwell, 384 U.S. 333 (1966)), due to the extent of the publicity the trial allegedly received.

Respondent submits that if such an "inherently prejudicial" condition in fact existed in the community, why was appellant so readily willing to waive sequestering in return for a week's continuance of the sentencing hearing? The record clearly shows the defense attorneys saying that "if we are not going to sequester, we would ask for a week," but "if we are only going to . . . Wednesday we move . . . for sequestration." (T.4111). One would think that in an "inherently prejudicial" community, the defense would want to reduce the amount of time a jury would remain unsequestered, not enlarge it.

Respondent submits that the atmosphere in the community was not "inherently prejudicial" and further that appellant has offered nothing but conclusory, self-serving, unsubstantiated allegations in support of his position and thus has failed to meet his burden of proof.

In Point V of this appeal, appellant similarly alleged it was prejudicial for the court not to sequester the jury during the trial because of the "inherently prejudicial" atmosphere in the community due to pre-

trial news coverage of the case. Respondent, in answer to this claim, clearly established in Point V that the line of cases which discuss "inherently prejudicial" publicity situations¹ are inapplicable to the instant case. (See pp. 59-61 of Respondent's Brief in State v. Pierre, Case No. 13903). As respondent pointed out, the leading Utah case involving the claim of "inherently prejudicial" publicity is Sinclair v. Turner, 20 Utah 2d 126, 434 P.2d 305 (1967), cert. denied 391 U.S. 924. In that case this Court held that pre-trial publicity must be measured against a generally accepted standard of responsible journalism and if that standard is met, the publicity will not be held to be "inherently prejudicial." Appellant in the present case has made no effort to show or even allege that the news coverage to which the jurors might be exposed, violated the above standard. All he alleges is that the case was "widely publicized" and that the testimony

¹Rideau v. Louisiana, 373 U.S. 723 (1963); Sheppard v. Maxwell, 384 U.S. 333 (1966); and Estes v. Texas, 381 U.S. 532 (1965).

at trial was "graphically portrayed daily to the public by both written and electronic media." Thus, the standard for "inherently prejudicial" publicity has not been met.

Therefore, as was shown by respondent in Point V, the traditional rule requiring appellant to prove "identifiable prejudice" applies. See Murphy v. Florida, 421 U.S. 794 (1975), and pp. 51-59, and 70-74 of Respondent's Brief in Pierre, supra. Under this rule, appellant must affirmatively show that news coverage in his case generated community bias to such a degree that his right to a fair trial was placed in jeopardy; he must show a causal nexus between such news reporting and actual juror exposure; and he must show the existence of actual juror prejudice as a result of improper publicity and the court's refusal to sequester the jury. See State v. Sales, 537 P.2d 1031 (Utah 1975), State v. Guertz, 11 Utah 2d 345, 359 P.2d 12 (1961), and State v. Hines, 6 Utah 2d 126, 307 P.2d 887 (1957). Respondent submits that appellant has failed to prove any of the above requirements. In fact, the record establishes the contrary; namely, (1) that the news coverage was not improper, (2) that there was no showing of actual juror exposure to the publicity, (3) that

the trial judge displayed extraordinary caution in admonishing the jury to stay away from sources of publicity and even forbade several jurors from returning to their places of employment, and (4) that there was no showing of actual juror prejudice resulting from publicity. All appellant has alleged is that there was news coverage and community awareness of the case. Such clearly does not warrant sequestering a jury and the trial court properly refused to do so.

In conclusion, respondent re-emphasizes the argument at pp. 70-74 of its brief in Pierre, supra, and submits that there was no abuse of discretion or reversible error in the trial court's denial of appellant's request to sequester the jury.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing points and authorities contained herein and in respondent's brief in State v. Pierre, Case No. 13903, respondent submits that appellant's conviction and sentence were proper and should be affirmed.